
 

 
BOARD OF SELECTMEN 

MEETING AGENDA 
Monday, May 23, 2022 

7:00 p.m. 
 

 
Pursuant to Chapter 20 of the Acts of 2021, An Act Relative to Extending Certain 
COVID-19 Measures Adopted During the State of Emergency, signed into law on 
June 16, 2021, this meeting will be conducted via remote participation.  No in-
person attendance by members of the public will be permitted. 
 
 

To view or listen 
 

• Live Stream link YouTube: 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCRdBrw3HeEAMB_KFKasrgXA  
 
Zoom webinar link: https://town-northborough-ma-us.zoom.us/j/83425287443 

•  
When prompted, enter Password 347003 
 

• CATV Government Channels: Verizon Channel 30, Charter Channel 192 
 

• Call 1-646-876-9923 
When prompted, enter Meeting ID  834 2528 7443 and Password 347003 

 
 

For Public Comment 
 

*** Public comment will be limited to 3 minutes per person *** 
 

• By Phone Dial *9 to raise your hand and wait to be recognized by the Chair. 
Please note that part of your phone number will be visible to those viewing 
the meeting. 
 

• By Zoom Click “Raise Hand” on the bottom of your screen and wait to be 
recognized by the Chair 

 
 
 

 
 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCRdBrw3HeEAMB_KFKasrgXA
https://town-northborough-ma-us.zoom.us/j/83425287443


BOARD OF SELECTMEN 
MEETING AGENDA 
Monday, May 23, 2022 

7:00 p.m. 

*Approval of March 28, 2022 Meeting Minutes

7:00 p.m. - ELECTION OF OFFICERS 

7:00 p.m. - PUBLIC HEARING 
To consider an application for a new All Alcoholic Beverages  
Restaurant License as submitted by Northborough Main Street 
Café  
d/b/a C’est La Vie Bistro for premises located at 30 Main Street. 

7:10 p.m. - CHANGE OF MANAGER 
To consider an application from Margaritas Restaurant Group- 
Northborough, Inc. d/b/a Tia Juan’s Margaritas Mexican 
Restaurant to change the manager of their All Alcoholic Beverages 
Restaurant License for premises located at 10006 Shops Way. 

7:15 p.m. - WILLIAM LYVER – POLICE CHIEF 
• Appointment of Michael Bisset as Police Sergeant.
• Appointment of Sean Montville as Police Officer.

7:25 p.m. - JASON LITTLE, FINANCE DIRECTOR 
• Approval/Execution of Bond Anticipation Notes.
• Approval/Execution of Advances in Lieu of Borrowing.

REPORTS 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 

NEW BUSINESS 

1. Discussion regarding the ARPA Public Input Session.

2. Discussion regarding process for Zoning Board of Appeals
appointment.

3. Recommendation for appointments to the Diversity, Equity, Inclusion
and Belonging Committee.

4. Execution of Cemetery Deeds 1144, 1145, 1146 & 1147.

5. Any other business to come before the Board.



 
6. Executive Session - pursuant to M.G.L., Chapter 30A, Section 21, 

Subsection 3 (Collective Bargaining Strategy Planning) and  
Subsection 3 (Litigation) regarding pending land use litigation: The 
Guttierez Company v. Northborough Planning Board, Land Court 
Case No. 21 MISC 000046; The Guttierez Company v. Northborough 
Planning Board, Land Court Case No. 21 MISC 000380; Isomedix 
Operations, Inc. d/b/a Steris A.S.T. v. Northborough Planning Board, 
Land Court Case No. 21 MISC 000436; and Abu Construction, Inc. 
and Ka Realty, Inc. v. Town of Northborough and Northborough 
Planning Board, Worcester Superior Court Civil Action No. 
1985CV00178), due to the Chair's determination that a discussion 
regarding these matters in an open meeting may have a detrimental 
effect on the litigating position of the Board and the Town. 

 



 
BOARD OF SELECTMEN 

MEETING MINUTES – April 11, 2022 
 
 
 
7:00 p.m. -  Chairman’s Introduction to Remote Meeting 
Chairman Perreault stated that this Open Meeting of the Board of Selectmen was being 
conducted remotely consistent with Governor Baker’s Executive Order of June 16, 2021, an Act 
Relative to Extending Certain COVID-19 Measures Adopted During the State of Emergency and 
that all members of the Board of Selectmen are allowed and encouraged to participate remotely. 
 
Chairman Perreault noted that the Order allows public bodies to meet entirely remotely so long 
as reasonable public access is afforded so that the public can follow along with the deliberations 
of the meeting.  He added that ensuring public access does not ensure public participation unless 
such participation is required by law.  Chairman Perreault noted that this meeting will allow for 
Public Comment.  He indicated the various ways that the public may view or participate in this 
meeting as listed on the posted agenda.   
 
Chairman Perreault confirmed that the following members and persons anticipated on the agenda 
were remotely present and could be heard. 
 
Board of Selectmen   Others 
Jason Perreault, Chair   John Coderre, Town Administrator   
Leslie Rutan, Vice Chair  Rebecca Meekins, Assistant Town Administrator 
T. Scott Rogers, Clerk   William Lyver, Police Chief 
Julianne Hirsh     David Parenti, Fire Chief 
Kristen Wixted   Scott Charpentier, DPW Director 
     Laurie Connors, Town Planner 
 
Meeting Business Ground Rules 
Chairman Perreault covered the ground rules for effective and clear conduct of the business.  He 
asked members of the Board to mute their phone or computer when not speaking and to speak 
clearly and in a way that helps generate accurate meeting minutes.  He will go through the items 
on the agenda.  Following presentations, Board members will be offered an opportunity to speak, 
followed by staff members answering any questions, if necessary.  Those responding will be 
asked to wait until the floor is yielded to them.  Members were asked if they wish to respond to 
the comments of others, to do so through the Chair. 
 
Any votes taken this evening will be done by roll call to ensure that the records of the vote are 
clear and accurate to the members attending the meeting remotely. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MARCH 28, 2022 MEETING 
Selectman Rutan moved the Board vote to approve the March 28, 2022 meeting minutes as 
submitted; Selectman Rogers seconded the motion; the roll call vote was taken as follows: 
 
Wixted  “aye”  Rutan  “aye” 
Hirsh  “aye”  Perreault “aye” 
Rogers  “aye” 
 
  



Selectmen Meeting  Minutes 2 April 11, 2022 
 
 

 

7:00 p.m. - WILLIAM LYVER – POLICE CHIEF 
  Appointment of Shane Gilman as Police Officer. 
 
Chief Lyver introduced Shane Gilman to the Board.  Mr. Gilman resides in Clinton, MA and will 
graduate next month with a Bachelor of Science in Criminal Justice. He will then immediately 
begin the Fitchburg State University Police Academy as a recruit officer.  Chief Lyver noted that 
Mr. Gilman is in the 4+1 program at Fitchburg State University, which provides for a four-year 
Bachelor’s Degree followed immediately with a fully certified, Municipal Police Training 
Committee (MPTC) authorized Police Academy, which is also operated by Fitchburg State 
University. 
 
Mr. Gilman thanked Chief Lyver and the Board for the opportunity to serve the Northborough 
community. 
 
Selectman Rutan moved the Board vote to appoint Shane Gilman as a full-time Police Officer 
effective July 1, 2022; Selectman Hirsh seconded the motion; the roll call vote was taken as 
follows: 
 
Wixted  “aye”  Rutan  “aye” 
Hirsh  “aye”  Perreault “aye” 
Rogers  “aye” 
 
Members of the Board welcomed Mr. Gilman to Northborough. 
 
7:10 p.m. - LAURIE CONNORS – TOWN PLANNER 
  Presentation regarding Chapter 40A, Section 3A, which encourages 

MBTA Communities to adopt Zoning Districts where multi-family  
zoning is permitted as of right. 

 
Town Planner Laurie Connors provided a presentation on the new draft guidelines for 
implementing and complying with the new regulations for Multi-family Zoning Districts issued 
by the MA Department of Housing and Community Development (DHCD).  Massachusetts Bay 
Transportation Authority (MBTA) communities are now required to have at least one zoning 
district of reasonable size in which multi-family housing is permitted as of right.  She noted that 
the draft guidelines do not require the building of new units, but simply require communities to 
change the use and dimensional charts in their zoning bylaws to allow for multi-family housing 
by right, subject to site plan review instead of a special permit.   
 
Ms. Connors indicated that Northborough is categorized as an MBTA-adjacent community 
because the Town does not have a transit station, but abuts a transit community.   She explained 
in detail each of the following criteria that applies to Northborough: 
 
Minimum gross density of 15 units per acre 
Ms. Connors explained the formula for determining the reasonable size and the minimum multi-
family unit capacity, which for Northborough is 750 units.  She added that the existing multi-
family units within Avalon Bay, Whitney Place, and several others throughout town count 
toward both units and density.   
 



Selectmen Meeting  Minutes 3 April 11, 2022 
 
 

 

Location of Multi-Family Districts 
Multi-family districts should be located in an area with reasonable access to a transit station 
based on existing street patterns, pedestrian connections and bicycle lanes, or near an existing 
downtown or an area of underutilized/abandoned structures with redevelopment potential. 
  
No age restrictions and must be suitable for families with children 
Multi-family districts cannot include age restrictions or place limits or restrictions on the size of 
units, number of bedrooms, size of bedrooms or number of occupants. 
 
Ms. Connors noted that failure to comply with the multi-family zoning requirements would make 
a community ineligible for funds from the following:   
 
• Housing Choice Grants 
• Local Capital Projects Fund  
• MassWorks Infrastructure Program 
• DHCD may take non-compliance into consideration when making other discretionary 

grant awards 
 
Ms. Connors noted that the MassWorks Infrastructure Program emphasizes the production of 
multi-family housing and job creation in appropriately located walkable, mixed-use districts like 
Downtown Northborough.  She added that the MassWorks Grant Program could be a funding 
mechanism for Northborough’s vision for a pedestrian-friendly, dynamic downtown. 
 
Ms. Connors indicated that the community must take certain steps to secure interim compliance 
including providing notice to DHCD, creating an action plan, implementing the action plan, and 
adopting a zoning amendment by December 31, 2024.  She added that a community may receive 
a determination of interim compliance from DHCD to allow time to plan for and pass a 
multifamily zoning district before achieving full compliance by March 31, 2025.   
 
In response to questions from Board members, Ms. Connors confirmed that the site plan review 
would be conducted by the Planning Board and that technical consulting assistance will be 
available from the Central Massachusetts Regional Planning Commission (CMRPC).  In 
response to a question by Mr. Coderre, Ms. Connors stated that certain communities have voiced 
concern that this is another unfunded mandate.  Mr. Coderre agreed and noted the impact this 
may have on infrastructure needs, as well as capital and operating budgets.  Ms. Connors stated 
that it is possible that the final guidelines will include lesser requirements.  She indicated that the 
process will include public participation.  She also confirmed that the Town is not obligated to 
provide multi-family units, as this is simply a zoning change that will provide for a developer to 
do so. 
 
REPORTS 
 
Kristen Wixted 
- Encouraged residents to visit the Cultural Council’s art exhibit “Go Out Doors” at the 

Ellsworth McAfee Park. 
- Congratulated the Algonquin High School students for publishing the first paper copy of the 

Algonquin Harbinger in two years. 
  



Selectmen Meeting  Minutes 4 April 11, 2022 

- Attended the recent Youth Commission meeting.
- Noted that Northborough Helping Hands is looking for medical equipment donations, such as

crutches, wheelchairs, etc. as they loan these items to those in need at no charge.

Julianne Hirsh 
- Congratulated the Cultural Council on the success of their art exhibit “Go Out Doors”.
- Reported on the recent meeting of the Personnel Board where they reviewed the

classification and compensation plan.
- Noted that the Westborough Sustainable Committee is sponsoring an Energy Fair on April

30th.  More information can be found on their Facebook page.
- Asked how and when Town Meeting will be advertised?  Mr. Coderre reviewed the plans for

advertising Town Meeting.

T. Scott Rogers
- Thanked the Financial Planning Committee and Appropriations Committee for their work

and for meeting every week during a very condensed Budget process.
- Interacted with recent meetings of the Planning Board, Earthwork Board and Personnel

Board.
- Thanked the Town staff for their work leading up to the April 25th Town Meeting.

Leslie Rutan 
- Thanked the Police Chief and Fire Chief for their monthly reports.
- Welcomed new Police Dispatcher Allie Gardell.
- Noted that residents seem pleased to see that the Assabet Park project is on schedule to be

completed by Memorial Day.
- Encouraged residents to visit the Be Well page on the Town website to see upcoming events.

Jason Perreault 
- Attended the Cultural Council’s presentation on the opening of their art exhibit at the

Ellsworth MacAfee Park.  Thanked the Cultural Council and encouraged residents to visit
this event.

John Coderre 
- No report.

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Chairman Perreault stated that the Public Comment portion of the agenda allows for the public to 
provide input, comments, questions, or concerns.  The Board will not engage or deliberate in any 
detailed discussion, nor will it take action or make any commitments in real time in response to 
any public comment.  If they are able, present Town staff may respond to any questions that can 
easily be answered.  Those who wish to speak under Public Comment will be admitted to the 
meeting as an attendee and will be asked to provide their full name and address for the record. 
Public comment will be limited to 3 minutes per person. 



Selectmen Meeting  Minutes 5 April 11, 2022 
 
 

 

Ruediger Volk of 137 East Main Street stated that due to these economic times, he is not in 
support of the funding requests under the Town Meeting Warrant Article for the construction of 
eight affordable low-income, senior one-bedroom rental units.  He also asked the Board to 
consider using ARPA funds to create long-term energy savings by installing solar cells over 
parking lots. 
 
Lisa Maselli of 13 Maple Street requested a status update on the repairs to the White Cliffs 
chimney.  Mr. Coderre responded that the chimney repairs are in the process of being addressed. 
 
EXECUTION OF MASSACHUSETTS STATE-SUBDIVISION AGREEMENT FOR 
STATE-WIDE OPIOID SETTLEMENTS 
Mr. Coderre reported that Massachusetts cities and towns worked together with Town Counsel 
and the Massachusetts Municipal Association (MMA) to take action against the opioid 
distributors and manufacturers that resulted in a settlement agreement through the Attorney 
General’s Office.  Under the default terms of the settlement agreement, local communities would 
receive 15% of the abatement funds coming into the state.  Attorney General Healey has 
proposed to increase that allocation to 40% by a Massachusetts State-Subdivision Agreement, 
which would result in Massachusetts municipalities receiving $210 million of the total $525 
million settlement.  An Opioid Recovery and Remediation Fund will  include $60 million that 
will be managed by a 20-person State Task Force Committee, of which 10 members will be 
municipal officials.   
 
Mr. Coderre indicated that in order to ensure that the increased allocation applies to the first 
payments, local communities are asked to execute the State-Subdivision Agreement as presented 
this evening.  He added that over half of the communities have agreed to sign on to this 
agreement, and the MMA is in full support as well.  It is not yet known how the funds will be 
distributed, allocated and used.  What is known is that the funds must be used for opioid 
prevention, harm reduction treatment and recovery programs. 
 
In response to questions and comments from members of the Board, Mr. Coderre noted that it is 
not known who will decide on how the funds can be used until further guidance is received from 
the State.  He added that the funds will likely be appropriated through Town Meeting. 
 
Selectman Hirsh moved the Board vote to approve the Massachusetts State-Subdivision 
Agreement for Statewide Opioid Settlements as presented and to authorize the Town 
Administrator to execute same; Selectman Rogers seconded the motion; the roll call vote was 
taken as follows: 
 
Wixted  “aye”  Rutan  “aye” 
Hirsh  “aye”  Perreault “aye” 
Rogers  “aye” 
 
DISCUSSION REGARDING APRIL 14TH ARPA PUBLIC INPUT SESSION 
Chairman Perreault noted that at their March 14, 2022 meeting, the Board agreed to schedule a 
dedicated ARPA joint public input session on Thursday, April 14, 2022.  Due to the demands of 
Town Meeting, as well as conflicts with school vacation and religious holidays, he proposed that 
this meeting be rescheduled to a future date when Town staff can focus more directly on the 
ARPA agenda. 



Selectmen Meeting  Minutes 6 April 11, 2022 
 
 

 

 
Board members agreed that the meeting should be rescheduled and shared their thoughts on 
when the Board should decide on the rescheduled date.  Chairman Perreault acknowledged that it 
will take some discussion in planning the logistics of the meeting in an attempt to satisfy 
everyone.  Following a brief discussion, residents were encouraged to forward ideas or 
suggestions about the logistical planning of this meeting, as well as the use of ARPA funds by 
emailing the Board of Selectmen or through the Be Well Northborough public input form on the  
Town website.   
 
REINSTATEMENT OF COMMON VICTUALLER LICENSE FOR MILLER FARMS 
Mr. Coderre indicated that Miller Farms at 277 Main Street is a seasonal restaurant that offers 
outside seating with picnic tables.  During the December 2021 License Renewal process, Mr. 
Miller asked that his Common Victualler license not be renewed for the 2022 Calendar Year.  He 
has since decided to reopen.     
 
Chairman Perreault noted that Mr. Miller has received satisfactory inspections by the Building, 
Fire and Health Departments.   
 
Selectman Wixted moved the Board vote to reinstate the Common Victualler License for Miller 
Farms at 277 Main Street for the 2022 Calendar Year; Selectman Rogers seconded the motion; 
the roll call vote was taken as follows: 
 
Wixted  “aye”  Rutan  “aye” 
Hirsh  “aye”  Perreault “aye” 
Rogers  “aye” 
 
REAPPOINTMENTS TO BOARDS, COMMITTESS AND COMMISSIONS 
Chairman Perreault indicated that the Board will consider the appointment and/or reappointment 
to the ZBA separately as there is a new applicant and an incumbent to be considered.  He added 
that the ZBA incumbent who has asked to be considered for reappointment is not included on the 
2022 Reappointment List. 
 
Reappointments to Boards, Committees and Commissions 
Chairman Perreault thanked and acknowledged those Board and Committee members who are 
appointed by the Board of Selectmen and have asked to be reappointed.   
 
Selectman Rogers moved the Board vote to reappoint those individuals who appear on the “2022 
Reappointment List” to the corresponding Boards, Committees and Commissions; Selectman   
Rutan seconded the motion; the roll call vote was taken as follows: 
 
Wixted  “aye”  Rutan  “aye” 
Hirsh  “aye”  Perreault “aye” 
Rogers  “aye” 
 
  



Selectmen Meeting  Minutes 7 April 11, 2022 
 
 

 

Appointment or Reappointment to the Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) 
Chairman Perreault noted that during the time period when interested residents were invited to 
apply for Boards and Committees as part of the reappointment process, one application was 
received for the Zoning Board of Appeals.  Interviews were conducted with the new applicant 
Kevin Wyrsch and the incumbent Richard Rand on March 29th by Chairman Perreault and 
Selectman Rogers – meeting minutes from those interviews, as well as copies of the applications 
were included in the Board’s meeting packets prior to tonight’s meeting. 
 
Motion 
For the purpose of discussion, Selectman Rogers moved the Board vote to reappoint Richard 
Rand to the Zoning Board of Appeals as recommended by the Interview Subcommittee; 
Selectman Rutan seconded the motion. 
 
Discussion 
Selectman Hirsh acknowledged Mr. Rand’s decades of experience, but added that Mr. Wyrsch 
can offer professional education and architectural experience, which would be a unique and 
valuable addition to the ZBA.  She added that it is important to encourage residents to volunteer 
where they can make their best contributions as in this case.   
 
Selectman Wixted acknowledged Mr. Rand’s 23 years of experience while serving on the 
Northborough ZBA, but added that she likes the perspective that Mr. Wyrsch can offer 
considering his years of architectural experience and his appearing before a number of other 
local ZBA’s on behalf of his clients. 
 
Selectman Rutan recused herself during the discussion and vote regarding the 
appointments/reappointments to the ZBA as she has a personal relationship with one of the ZBA 
members. 
 
Selectman Rogers stated that one of the things he considers when applicants apply for a certain 
Board or Committee is the amount of preparation they have undergone to familiarize themselves 
with that particular Board or Committee, especially in the case of the ZBA.  He acknowledged 
that Mr. Wyrsch would be a great candidate for an alternate opening on the ZBA and hopes that 
he would apply again sometime in the future.   
 
Chairman Perreault acknowledged the unique perspective that Mr. Wrysch could bring to the 
ZBA considering his experience presenting before other ZBA's on healthcare or educational 
facilities.  He does not see Mr. Wrysch as a compelling candidate based solely on his 
professional experience.  He expressed his concern with his lack of prior engagement with the 
ZBA or with Town government as a whole.   He spoke to Mr. Rand’s years of direct experience, 
exemplary record of leadership, meeting attendance and participation in the ZBA meetings, as 
well as his knowledge of Northborough’s bylaws.  He added that he would prefer that a new 
applicant for the ZBA be appointed first as an alternate member in order to gain the needed 
knowledge and experience.   
 
Chairman Perreault noted that during his interview, Mr. Wrysch indicated that he had not 
attended or watched a ZBA meeting, nor has he attended a Town Meeting in the 14 years he has 
lived in Northborough.  A discussion ensued about the expectation that applicants should have 
prior engagement in Town government before applying for a particular Board or Committee, 



Selectmen Meeting  Minutes 8 April 11, 2022 
 
 

 

especially in the case of the ZBA.  Selectmen Hirsh and Wixted noted that there are many 
reasons that someone may not have the opportunity to get involved in Town government by 
serving on a Board or Committee, but that they may be engaged in the community in other ways.  
They don’t believe that this should be a reason to exclude someone and they encouraged 
residents to not be afraid to step up and start somewhere.  Selectmen Wixted and Hirsh remained 
convinced that with his architectural background, education and experience with other ZBA’s, 
Mr. Wrysch is the right candidate for appointment to the ZBA. 
 
Selectman Rogers noted that there are over a dozen vacancies across the various Boards and 
Committees who are in need of residents to serve.  He recommended that interested residents 
attend or watch a meeting of the Board or Committee that they are interested in serving on in 
order to educate themselves on the expected duties and time commitment.   
 
Motion 
Chairman Perreault recommended that the Board make a new motion considering that the 
original motion was seconded by Selectman Rutan who recused herself from the discussion. 
 
Selectman Rogers moved the Board vote to reappoint Richard Rand to the Zoning Board of 
Appeals as recommended by the Interview Subcommittee; Selectman Hirsh seconded the 
motion; the roll call vote was taken as follows: 
 
Wixted  “nay”  Rogers  “aye” 
Hirsh  “nay”  Perreault “aye” 
 
Due to a split vote, the Board will revisit the appointment to the ZBA at a future meeting.  
Selectman Rutan returned to the meeting. 
 
ASSIGNMENT OF TOWN MEETING WARRANT ARTICLES 
Members of the Board agreed on which Warrant Articles each of them would read motions for at 
Town Meeting.   
 
VOTES ON TOWN MEETING WARRANT ARTICLE RECOMMENDATIONS 
Mr. Coderre noted that the Financial Planning Committee and the Appropriations Committee 
have unanimously recommended approval of all capital and operating budget articles. 
 
Selectman Rutan moved the Board vote to recommend approval of the following Warrant 
Articles at Town Meeting: 
 
Article 4 (Town Budget) 
Article 5 (Water, Sewer and Solid Waste Enterprise Funds) 
Article 6 (Northborough K-8 Schools Budget) 
Article 7 (Northborough Southborough School District Budget) 
 
Selectman Rogers seconded the motion; the roll call vote was taken as follows: 
 
Wixted  “aye”  Rutan  “aye” 
Hirsh  “aye”  Perreault “aye” 
Rogers  “aye” 



Selectmen Meeting  Minutes 9 April 11, 2022 

SET MEETING SCHEDULE FOR MAY – AUGUST 
After reviewing the suggested meeting schedule, Selectmen Hirsh requested that the Board meet 
earlier than May 23rd to discuss the ARPA public input session. A brief discussion ensued about 
the difficulty of scheduling an earlier May meeting due to conflicting schedules.  The Board will 
discuss the ARPA meeting on May 23rd with the intent to schedule the ARPA meeting for some 
time in early June. 

Selectman Hirsh moved the Board vote to set the meeting schedule for May through August as 
follows: 

May 23 
June 13 & 27 
July 18 
August 15 

Selectman Rogers seconded the motion; the roll call vote was taken as follows: 

Wixted  “aye” Rutan “aye” 
Hirsh “nay” Perreault “aye” 
Rogers “aye” 

EXECUTION OF CEMETERY DEEDS 1142 & 1143 
Selectman Wixted moved the Board vote to execute Cemetery Deeds 1142 & 1143; Selectman 
Hirsh seconded the motion; the roll call vote was taken as follows: 

Wixted  “aye” Rutan “aye” 
Hirsh “aye” Perreault “aye” 
Rogers “aye” 

OTHER BUSINESS 
None. 

ADJOURNMENT 
Selectman Hirsh moved the Board vote to adjourn, Selectman Wixted seconded the motion; the 
roll call vote was taken as follows: 

Wixted  “aye” Rutan “aye” 
Hirsh “aye” Perreault “aye” 
Rogers “aye” 

The meeting adjourned at 9:40 p.m. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Diane M. Wackell 
Executive Assistant to the 



Selectmen Meeting  Minutes 10 April 11, 2022 

  Board of Selectmen 

Documents used during meeting: 
1. April 11, 2022 Meeting Agenda
2. March 28, 2022 Meeting Minutes
3. Memorandum – Appointment of Police Officer
4. Information Packet – MBTA Communities
5. Information Packet – State-Wide Opioid Settlements
6. Memorandum – Reinstatement of Common Victualler License
7. Information Packet – Reappointments
8. Memorandum – Assignment of Town Meeting Warrant Articles
9. Warrant Article Summary Sheet
10. Memorandum – Meeting Schedule
11. Cemetery Deeds

RETURN TO AGENDA



TOWN OF  NORTHBOROUGH 

Town Offices, 63 Main Street 
Northborough, MA 01532-1994 

508-393-5040 Phone
508-393-6996 Fax

www.town.northborough.ma.us 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Members of the Board of Selectmen 
Town Administrator 

FROM: Diane Wackell, Executive Assistant 
  to the Board of Selectmen 

DATE:  May 18, 2022 

RE: Application for a New All Alcoholic Beverages Restaurant License 
Northborough Main Street Café d/b/a C’est La Vie Bistro 
30 Main Street 

________________________________________________________________________ 

Millie Milton of Northborough Main Street Café d/b/a C’est La Vie Bistro has submitted 
an application for a new All Alcoholic Beverages Restaurant License at 30 Main Street.   

Ms. Milton has owned and operated C’est La Vie Bistro, a successful café, since 2012.  She 
will be the manager of record and will be responsible for the day-to-day operations of the 
restaurant.  She has over ten years of experience in the restaurant industry and is TIPS 
Certified.  Ms. Milton will be present at the public hearing.  

As this is a new license application, abutters were notified of the public hearing via certified 
mail.  Abutters must include schools or churches within a radius of 500 feet.  Trinity Church 
at 23 Main Street was notified of the public hearing as it located within this radius.  If 
Trinity Church does not object to this license application at any time before or during the 
public hearing, it is appropriate for the Board to include in the motion to approve that it has 
determined that the licensed premises are not detrimental to the educational and spiritual 
activities of that church. 

Lieutenant Brian Griffin has conducted a background check and has no concerns to report. 

It is recommended that the All Alcoholic Beverages Restaurant License be approved with 
the condition that the licensee receive satisfactory inspections by the Building, Fire and 
Health Departments. 

http://www.town.northborough.ma.us/


TOWN OF  NORTHBOROUGH 
Town Offices 

63 Main Street 
Northborough, MA 01532-1994 

(508) 393-5040 Phone
(508) 393-6996 Fax

TOWN OF NORTHBOROUGH 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

Pursuant to Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 138, Section 12, notice is 

hereby given that the Board of Selectmen will hold a remote public hearing on Monday, 

May 23, 2022 at 7:00 p.m. to act on an application for a new All Alcoholic Beverages 

Restaurant License as submitted by Northborough Main Street Café d/b/a C’est La Vie 

Bistro on the following described premises located at 30 Main Street, Northborough, 

MA:  Breakfast and lunch café in 2½ floors of a 4½ story brick building with a 20x30 

outdoor deck with three rooms on each floor.  The restaurant and kitchen are a total of 

3696 square feet and the outdoor patio is 600 square feet. 

Pursuant to Governor Baker’s Executive Order of June 16, 2021, an Act Relative 

to Extending Certain COVID-19 Measures Adopted During the State of Emergency this 

meeting of the Northborough Board of Selectmen will be conducted via remote 

participation to the greatest extent possible.  

To join the Public Hearing 

URL link:  https://town-northborough-ma-us.zoom.us/j/83425287443 Passcode: 347003 

Join by phone: 1 646 876 9923 / Webinar ID: 834 2528 7443 / Passcode: 347003 

T. Scott Rogers, Clerk
Northborough Board of Selectmen 

May 6, 2022 

https://town-northborough-ma-us.zoom.us/j/83425287443


William E. Lyver, Jr. 
     Chief of Police 

To:       Board of Selectmen 

From:   Lieutenant Brian T. Griffin 

Date:    May 16, 2022 

Re:  New Liquor License C’est La Vie Bistro 

Honorable Members of the Board: 

I have been asked to conduct a background check for a proposed new All Alcoholic Beverages 
Restaurant License for property located at 30 Main Street, Northborough Main Street Café LLC, dba 
C’est La Vie Bistro.  

The owner and proposed manager of record is Ms. Mildred Milton. Ms. Milton has operated C’est La 
Vie Bistro since 2012. Ms. Milton has over a decade of experience in the food service industry and is 
TIPS certified.  

Having conducted a background check, I have no concerns to report to the Board and recommended 
approval of the license. 

Should you need any further questions answered please feel free to contact me. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Lieutenant Brian T. Griffin 
Licensing Agent  

 Northborough Police Department 
           211 Main Street 

  Northborough, Massachusetts 01532 
508-393-1515  Fax 508-393-1519

















RETURN TO AGENDA



TOWN OF  NORTHBOROUGH 

Town Offices, 63 Main Street 
Northborough, MA 01532-1994 

508-393-5040 Phone
508-393-6996 Fax

www.town.northborough.ma.us 

MEMO 

TO: Members of the Board of Selectmen 
Town Administrator 

FROM: Diane Wackell, Executive Assistant 

DATE:  May 18, 2022 

RE: Change of Manager – All Alcoholic Beverages Restaurant License 
Tia Juan’s Margaritas Mexican Restaurant – 10006 Shops Way 

An application has been submitted by Tia Juan’s Margaritas Mexican Restaurant to 
change the manager of record for their All Alcoholic Beverages Restaurant License at 
10006 Shops Way. 

Ms. McCarthy is experienced in the restaurant industry and is TIPS certified.  Her 
personal information has been reviewed by Lieutenant Brian Griffin, who has indicated 
that he has no concerns to report. 

http://www.town.northborough.ma.us/


William E. Lyver, Jr. 
     Chief of Police 

To:       Board of Selectmen 

From:   Lieutenant Brian T. Griffin 

Date:    May 16, 2022 

Re:    Background check for Change of Manager 
 Tio Juans Margaritas Mexican Restaurant – 10006 Shops Way 

Honorable Members of the Board: 

I have been asked to conduct a background check for a Change of Manager for the All Alcoholic 
Beverages Restaurant License for Margaritas Restaurant Group – Northborough, Inc. d/b/a Tio Juans 
Margaritas Mexican Restaurant for premises located at 10006 Shops Way.  

The proposed manager of record is Ms. Julia McCarthy.  Ms. McCarthy has prior experience in the 
food and beverage industry and is currently TIPS certified.  

Having conducted a background check, I have no concerns to report to the BCoard. 

Should you need any further questions answered please feel free to contact me. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Lieutenant Brian T. Griffin 
Licensing  Agent  

 Northborough Police Department 
           211 Main Street 

  Northborough, Massachusetts 01532 
508-393-1515  Fax 508-393-1519



RETURN TO AGENDA



William E. Lyver, Jr. 
     Chief of Police 

May 18, 2022 

Mr. Jason Perreault, Chairman 
Northborough Board of Selectmen 
63 Main Street 
Northborough, MA 01532 

Dear Chairman Perreault, 

I respectfully request that I be placed on the May 23, 2022, Selectmen’s meeting agenda. This 
request is made so that I may present Officer Michael Bisset as a candidate for promotion / 
appointment to the rank of sergeant.   

              Last June we held a promotional process where three officers elected to participate. The process 
consisted of a written exam, an assessment center, and Chief’s review of each officer’s past 
performance evaluations. An outside consulting firm specializing in police promotional testing and 
assessment centers was hired to conduct the testing and assessment center process. On Wednesday 
June 16, 2021, the written exam was administered. All three candidates scored above the minimum 
seventy-percent score required to move on to the assessment center phase. On Saturday June 19, 
2021, the assessment center was administered at the Senior Center.  

The scores of the written exam and assessment centers were calculated and the scores were 
provided to me on Sunday June 20, 2021. Per our policies and procedures, this promotional process 
creates a promotional list that is valid for one year. The current list expires June 28, 2022. The top 
scorer was promoted on June 28, 2021. The next candidate to be promoted is Officer Michael Bisset 
and am recommending to the Board that Officer Bisset be promoted to sergeant at your May 
23,2022 meeting. 

 Respectfully submitted, 

 Northborough Police Department 
           211 Main Street 

  Northborough, Massachusetts 01532 
508-393-1515  Fax 508-393-1519



William E. Lyver, Jr. 
     Chief of Police 

May 18, 2022 

Mr. Jason Perreault, Chairman 
Northborough Board of Selectmen 
63 Main Street 
Northborough, MA 01532 

Dear Chairman Perreault, 

I respectfully request that I be placed on the May 23, 2022, Selectmen’s meeting agenda. This 
request is made so that I may present a candidate for appointment as a full-time police officer. 

The candidate, Sean Montville, is a former Northborough officer the separated from service to 
pursue other law enforcement options. Sean is seeking to return. Sean is turnkey ready and can 
begin working independently immediately. 

Sean served the Northborough Police Department for seven years prior to departing. His service to 
the community, performance and professionalism was outstanding. I ask that he be appointed and 
started at top step of the Patrolman’s rate of pay as established in the local 165 CBA.  

 Respectfully submitted, 

 Northborough Police Department 
           211 Main Street 

  Northborough, Massachusetts 01532 
508-393-1515  Fax 508-393-1519

RETURN TO AGENDA



1 

Town of  Northborough 
Finance Department 

63 Main Street 
Northborough, MA 01532 

Phone: (508) 393-5004 
Fax: (508) 393-6996 

May 19, 2022 

Board of Selectmen 
Northborough, MA 01532 

Dear Board of Selectmen, 

I will be attending your May 23, 2022 meeting to request that you vote to accept winning 
bids and execute the required documents related to $4.233M in Bond Anticipation Notes 
(BANs). The Town received five close bids for this debt, and the winning bidder was 
Fidelity Capital Markets with a net interest rate of 2.3442%. A table with historic interest 
rates is attached for reference. Note that interest rates have trended upward recently due to 
market forces, though the Town was helped by its high credit quality along with the overall 
security of municipal debt. The BANs being issued cover the following projects: 

Date Article Purpose  Principal Amount 
4/25/2016 42 White Cliffs Acquisition  $       895,000.00 
4/25/2019 13 Fire Station Land/Design  $    2,100,000.00 
7/18/2020 23 Assabet Water Tank  $       688,000.00 
5/1/2021 17 Water/Sewer SCADA  $       500,000.00 
5/1/2021 18 Dam Compliance  $         50,000.00 
Total  $   4,233,000.00 

The Town can internally fund projects using “Advances in Lieu of Borrowing,” however 
advances cannot cross fiscal years, therefore the request is being made to the Board to 
approve an advance effective with the start of the new fiscal year (FY2023) for the 
following, for which debt may need to be issued for prior to June 30, 2023: 

Date Article Purpose  Amount Authorized 
4/25/2022 12 Fire Dept. Ambulance  $       400,000.00  
Total  $       400,000.00 

I look forward to presenting this information and answering any questions you may have 
at your meeting.   

Sincerely, 

Jason Little 
Finance Director 



Bond Anticipation Notes
Temporary Borrowing

Issue Rate Rate
Amount Date (NIC) Stated

Municipal Purpose 4,233,000$           6/10/2022 2.3442% 3.00%
Municipal Purpose 3,925,000$           6/11/2021 0.2535% 1.50%
Municipal Purpose 2,430,000$           6/12/2020 0.8599% 1.25%
Municipal Purpose 2,417,000$           6/14/2019 1.8116% 2.25%
Municipal Purpose 2,719,000$           6/15/2018 1.8812% 2.75%
Municipal Purpose 2,876,000$           6/16/2017 1.0983% 2.00%
Municipal Purpose 1,430,000$           6/17/2016 0.8548%
Municipal Purpose 2,000,000$           6/17/2016 0.850%
Municipal Purpose 1,650,000$           1/22/2016 0.624%
Municipal Purpose 1,650,000$           6/17/2015 0.449%
Municipal Purpose 1,603,700$           4/27/2012 0.568%
Municipal Purpose 1,151,680$           4/29/2011 0.785%
Municipal Purpose 10,025,362$         4/30/2010 0.470%
Municipal Purpose 9,223,362$           5/1/2009 0.579%
Land Acquisition - Sewer Renewal 1,663,000$           10/24/2008 3.250%
Municipal Purpose 10,655,072$         5/2/2008 1.726% 2.50%
Land Acquisition - Sewer Renewal 1,768,000$           10/26/2007 3.465%
Municipal Purpose 3,249,312$           6/15/2007 3.748%
Municipal Purpose 800,183$              5/18/2007 3.780%
Municipal Purpose 1,873,000$           10/27/2006 3.570%
Municipal Purpose 800,183$              5/19/2006 3.870%
Municipal Purpose-Renewal 1,073,792$           5/19/2006 3.830%
Land Acquisition - Sewer Renewal 2,500,000$           10/28/2005 2.988% 2.94%
Municipal Purpose 1,073,792$           6/17/2005 2.780%
Land Acquisition - Sewer 2,500,000$           10/29/2004 1.850% 3.00%
Municipal Purpose 2,176,300$           5/27/2004 1.600%
Chapter 90 Highway (SAAN) 119,312$              6/27/2003 1.170%
Municipal Purpose 505,000$              5/27/2003 1.380%
119 Colburn Street - Grant 300,000$              6/14/2002 1.940%
119 Colburn Street - Town 1,055,000$           6/14/2002 1.844% 2.00%
Municipal Purpose 1,909,014$           2/28/2002 1.650%
Municipal Purpose 2,728,947$           5/18/2001 2.939% 3.20%
Municipal Purpose 1,181,876$           6/30/2000 4.550% 4.75%
Municipal Purpose 1,975,000$           5/28/1999 3.278% 3.75%
Zeh  & Church St. Sewer Renewal 7,210,000$           2/2/1999 3.019% 3.25%
Zeh School 1,090,000$           6/16/1998 3.830% 4.00%
Church St. Sewer 700,000$              5/18/1998 3.890%
Zeh School 5,420,000$           2/2/1998 3.630% 4.00%
Municipal Purpose 602,708$              1/16/1998 4.070%
Chap 90 Highway (SAAN) 137,900$              6/17/1997 4.090%
Municipal Purpose 1,987,000$           6/17/1997 4.150%
Municipal Purpose 602,708$              1/17/1997 4.060%
Ambulance 45,000$  9/19/1996 4.450%

Bonds Issue Rate
Permanent Financing Major Project Amount Date (TIC) Term

Municipal Purposes & Refunding 6,845,000$           5/26/2021 0.680% 10 Yrs
Municipal Purpose Loan 2,527,000$           6/15/2018 2.560% 15 Yrs.
Municipal Purpose Loan Lincoln St School 6,800,000$           1/15/2016 2.271% 20 Yrs.
Municipal Purpose Loan Lincoln St School 7,390,000$           6/15/2015 2.498% 20 Yrs.
Municipal Purpose Loan 1,819,000$           4/15/2013 1.213% 10 Yrs
Municipal Purpose Loan Senior Center 8,612,000$           4/1/2011 3.090% 18 Yrs.
Land Acquisition Bond- Sewer Taxable 1,550,000$           10/15/2009 5.919% 15 Yrs.
Municipal Purpose Loan Library 9,743,000$           5/1/2009 3.540% 20 Yrs.
Municipal Purpose Loan 1,700,000$           10/15/2006 3.929% 15 Yrs.
Municipal Purpose Loan 2,100,000$           5/15/2005 3.888% 20 Yrs.
Municipal Purpose Loan 2,964,000$           2/15/2003 3.766% 18 Yrs.
Municipal Purpose Loan 2,725,000$           2/15/2002 3.865% 15 Yrs.
Municipal Purpose Loan Zeh School 9,155,000$           2/1/2000 5.499% 20 Yrs.
Municipal Purpose Loan 2,285,000$           5/15/1998 4.283% 10 Yrs
Municipal Purpose Loan Proctor School 6,200,000$           12/1/1995 4.948% 20 Yrs.

Interest Rate History



        Christopher C. Harding 
    Commissioner of Revenue 

     Sean R. Cronin 
     Senior Deputy Commissioner 

Supporting a Commonwealth of Communities 
mass.gov/DLS 

P.O. Box 9569 Boston, MA 02114-9569
(617) 626-2300

ADVANCE OF FUNDS IN LIEU OF BORROWING REPORT 

City/Town/District of Northborough 

Purpose of Issue Fire Department Ambulance 

Authorization April 25, 2022 Article 12, MGL Chapter 44 
(Date and article of town meeting vote and M.G.L. citation) 

Grant Number  
(If applicable) 

A. Amount of Loan Authorized $      400,000 
Computation of Limit on Total of Advances:      

B. Unappropriated Free Cash $     500,259 
C. Stabilization Fund $  5,361,632 
D. 1% of FY _2023_ Budget $     712,426 
E. Greatest of line B,  C  or  D $  5,361,632 

F. Other Advances Outstanding $      - 
G. Remaining Limit ( line E less line F ) $  5,361,632 
H. Amount to be Advanced  -  This Issue

     (not to exceed line G) 
$     400,000 

Date of Advance July 1, 2022 
Treasurer 

Approved:  

_______ ______ _____   __    

______ ______       
Mayor or City Manager 
Majority of Selectmen or Commissioners 

Please send 1st Copy to:  Accountant or Auditor 
  See IGR No. 17-21 for instructions and accounting procedures 

Date of Repayment to General Fund: 

Accountant/Auditor 
Please send 2nd Copy to:  Division of Local Services 

Public Finance Section 
PO Box 9569 
Boston MA 02114-9569 

(Revised: September 2017)



VOTE OF THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN 

I, the Clerk of the Board of Selectmen of the Town of Northborough, Massachusetts, certify 
that at a meeting of the board held May 23, 2022, of which meeting all members of the board were 
duly notified and at which a quorum was present, the following votes were unanimously passed, 
all of which appear upon the official record of the board in my custody: 

Voted:  to approve the sale of $4,233,000 3.00 percent General Obligation Bond 
Anticipation Notes (the “Notes”) of the Town dated June 10, 2022, and payable June 9, 
2023 to Fidelity Capital Markets, a division of National Financial Services LLC at par and 
accrued interest, if any, plus a premium of $27,683.82. 

Further Voted:  that in connection with the marketing and sale of the Notes, the 
preparation and distribution of a Notice of Sale and Preliminary Official Statement dated 
May 11, 2022, and a final Official Statement dated May 17, 2022, each in such form as 
may be approved by the Town Treasurer, be and hereby are ratified, confirmed, approved 
and adopted. 

Further Voted:  that the Town Treasurer and the Board of Selectmen be, and hereby 
are, authorized to execute and deliver a significant events disclosure undertaking in 
compliance with SEC Rule 15c2-12 in such form as may be approved by bond counsel to 
the Town, which undertaking shall be incorporated by reference in the Notes for the benefit 
of the holders of the Notes from time to time. 

Further Voted:  that we authorize and direct the Town Treasurer to establish post 
issuance federal tax compliance procedures and continuing disclosure procedures in such 
forms as the Town Treasurer and bond counsel deem sufficient, or if such procedures are 
currently in place, to review and update said procedures, in order to monitor and maintain 
the tax-exempt status of the Notes and to comply with relevant securities laws. 

Further Voted:  that any certificates or documents relating to the Notes 
(collectively, the “Documents”), may be executed in several counterparts, each of which 
shall be regarded as an original and all of which shall constitute one and the same 
document; delivery of an executed counterpart of a signature page to a Document by 
electronic mail in a “.pdf” file or by other electronic transmission shall be as effective as 
delivery of a manually executed counterpart signature page to such Document; and 
electronic signatures on any of the Documents shall be deemed original signatures for the 
purposes of the Documents and all matters relating thereto, having the same legal effect as 
original signatures. 

Further Voted:  that each member of the Board of Selectmen, the Town Clerk and 
the Town Treasurer be and hereby are, authorized to take any and all such actions, and 
execute and deliver such certificates, receipts or other documents as may be determined by 
them, or any of them, to be necessary or convenient to carry into effect the provisions of 
the foregoing votes. 



2 

I further certify that the votes were taken at a meeting open to the public, that no vote was 
taken by secret ballot, that a notice stating the place, date, time and agenda for the meeting (which 
agenda included the adoption of the above votes) was filed with the Town Clerk and a copy thereof 
posted in a manner conspicuously visible to the public at all hours in or on the municipal building 
that the office of the Town Clerk is located or, if applicable, in accordance with an alternative 
method of notice prescribed or approved by the Attorney General as set forth in 940 CMR 
29.03(2)(b), at least 48 hours, not including Saturdays, Sundays and legal holidays, prior to the 
time of the meeting and remained so posted at the time of the meeting, that no deliberations or 
decision in connection with the sale of the Notes were taken in executive session, all in accordance 
with G.L. c.30A, §§18-25, as amended. 

Dated:  May 23, 2022 

_______________________________ 
Clerk of the Board of Selectmen 

RETURN TO AGENDA



BOARD OF SELECTMEN 
INTERVIEW SUB-COMMITTEE 

MEETING MINUTES – March 29, 2022 

6:00 p.m. -  Introduction to Remote Meeting 
Selectman Rogers stated that this Open Meeting of the Board of Selectmen Interview 
Subcommittee was being conducted remotely consistent with Governor Baker’s Executive 
Order of June 16, 2021, an Act Relative to Extending Certain COVID-19 Measures 
Adopted During the State of Emergency and that all members of the Board of Selectmen 
Interview Subcommittee are allowed and encouraged to participate remotely. 

Selectman Rogers noted that the Order allows public bodies to meet entirely remotely so 
long as reasonable public access is afforded so that the public can follow along with the 
deliberations of the meeting.  He added that ensuring public access does not ensure public 
participation unless such participation is required by law.  He noted that this meeting will 
be livestreamed, but will not allow for Public Comment. He indicated the various ways that 
the public may view this meeting as listed on the posted agenda.   

Selectman Rogers stated that any votes taken this evening will be by roll call vote. He 
confirmed that the following persons were remotely present and could be heard. 

Selectmen Chair Jason Perreault 
Selectman Scott Rogers 
Zoning Board of Appeals Clerk Fran Bakstran 

MEETING MINUTES 
Selectman Rogers recommended that the acceptance of meeting minutes be postponed to 
the next Board of Selectmen Interview Committee meeting, at which time Selectman Rutan 
will be present. 

INTERVIEWS FOR THE ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS (ZBA) 
For the record, one regular voting seat is up for reappointment of which the incumbent is 
seeking reappointment.  In addition, there is one new applicant.  Both will be interviewed 
this evening. 

Chairman Perreault noted that he is substituting regular Interview Committee member 
Selectman Rutan who perceives herself to have a conflict of interest with a sitting member 
of the ZBA.  ZBA Clerk Fran Bakstran will be present during the interviews to provide 
information about the ZBA and  to answer any questions the applicants may have. 

Kevin Wyrsch 
Mr. Wyrsch has been a resident of Northborough for 14 years.  Professionally, he serves 
as an architect with nearly 20 years of experience.  His skills include programming, site 
planning, building design, knowledge of various codes and experience reviewing local 
zoning bylaws.  As an architect, he enjoys working with local ZBA’s and finds the whole 
process very interesting.  His interest in joining the ZBA is to give back to the community 
and to participate in helping Northborough continue to grow. 



Interview Sub Committee Meeting Minutes 
March 29, 2022 

-2- 

Ms. Bakstran noted that the ZBA is comprised of five regular voting members and two 
alternate members.  She reviewed the scope of the ZBA and the meeting schedule. 

Mr. Wyrsch explained that his understanding of the ZBA’s role is to determine if an 
applicant’s appeal regarding non-conformance will be allowed under the local provisions 
of the Town bylaws.  He stated that he has the time it will take to prepare for and attend 
the monthly meetings.  He explained, as an architect, that he has represented various clients 
who have had to appear before local ZBAs.  He shared his experience in successfully 
presenting details of his client’s healthcare based projects before local ZBAs and the 
benefits and programs that each will provide to the community. 

In terms of preparation and research relating to the ZBA and the zoning bylaws, Mr. 
Wyrsch noted that he has viewed some of the ZBA agendas and minutes from the past 
several months to familiarize himself with the actions of the ZBA.   Although he has not 
reached out to Town staff or ZBA members, he is a strong proponent of introducing new 
people to Boards and Committees in order to offer a fresh perspective.  He has not had a 
specific interest in zoning related issues presented at any previous Town Meetings. 

Mr. Wyrsch asked what qualities they are looking for in a ZBA member?  Selectman 
Rogers responded that both experience and expertise are important for a permitting Board 
such as the ZBA.  He acknowledged that the requirements of the ZBA are demanding and 
that the ZBA may be better served by someone through a natural progression.  For example, 
a good starting point is to gain working knowledge of the Town by first serving on one the 
various land use Boards that work closely with the ZBA and then serving on the ZBA first 
as an alternate member.   

Mr. Wyrsch ended his interview by stating that although he does not have the direct 
experience in serving as a ZBA member yet, he asked that his professional background, 
logic, organizational skills and his ability to make sound judgement decisions be 
considered as strengths he can bring to the ZBA. 

Selectman Rogers stated that if Mr. Wyrsch is not recommended for appointment to the 
ZBA, he encouraged him to consider serving on one of the many Boards and Committees 
that currently have vacancies. 

Richard Rand (incumbent) 
Mr. Rand noted that he has been a Northborough resident for 57 years and has served  as a 
member of the ZBA for the past 23 years having participated in most the hearing and 
rulings during this time.   

Mr. Rand stated that the ZBA issues special permits and variances after hearing appeals of 
decisions made by the Building Inspector on matters which arise out of the enforcement of 
Town bylaws. 



Interview Sub Committee Meeting Minutes 
March 29, 2022 

-3- 

Mr. Rand stated that he has no reservations in his continued commitment to serve on the 
ZBA.  Over the years, he has gained and put to use the specialized knowledge and 
experience required of a ZBA member, adding that it’s important to understand the State 
laws and local zoning bylaws and be competent enough to reach decisions that can 
withstand legal challenge. 

Mr. Rand indicated that he regularly attends and has participated in Annual Town 
Meetings.  He shared his interest on the proposed article on this year’s Town Meeting 
Warrant regarding the removal of the use variance from the authority of the ZBA.   

Mr. Rand shared his thoughts on the collaboration of the ZBA members that includes a 
broad range of experience.  Everyone participates and respects the various opinions to help 
determine the right decision for both the applicant and the Town. 

DELIBERATION 
Chairman Perreault agreed that the requirements of the ZBA are demanding and that the 
ZBA may be better served by someone through a natural progression.  He would prefer a 
new applicant for the ZBA be appointed first as an alternate member in order to gain the 
needed knowledge and experience.  They can then decide if they want to continue serving 
as a voting member when the opportunity arises.  In contrast, Mr. Rand brings his many 
years of service and experience as a long standing member on the ZBA.  He added that if 
they were interviewing to fill a vacancy that Mr. Wyrsch would be a good candidate given 
his professional experience.  With that being said, he would prefer to reappoint Mr. Rand 
at this time. 

Selectman Rogers agreed with Chairman Perreault, adding that he is leaning towards 
reappointing the incumbent Mr. Rand due to his years of experience and his willingness to 
continue to serve.  He will again encourage Mr. Wyrsch to look into current vacancies on 
other Boards and Committees.  Chairman Perreault added that he would prefer to appoint 
individuals to a Board such as the ZBA who have been engaged in Town government to 
be able to bring some familiarity to some of the issues.  To the extent that meetings are 
now conducted remotely, there is a real opportunity for residents to follow in real time 
some of the applications as they go through the process.   

Selectman Rogers noted that there is at least a dozen vacancies across the various Boards 
and Committees who need are in need of residents looking to serve their community. 

RECOMMENDATION 
Chairman Perreault moved the Interview Subcommittee vote to recommend the 
reappointment of Richard Rand to the ZBA for a 3-year term to expire on April 30, 2025; 
Selectman Rogers seconded the motion; the roll call vote was as follows: 

Chairman Jason Perreault “aye” 
Selectman Scott Rogers “aye” 



Interview Sub Committee Meeting Minutes 
March 29, 2022 

-4- 

ADJOURNMENT 
At 6:35pm, Chairman Perreault moved the Interview Subcommittee vote to adjourn; 
Selectman Rogers seconded the motion.  The roll call vote was taken as follows: 

Chairman Jason Perreault “aye” 
Selectman Scott Rogers “aye” 

Respectfully submitted, 

Diane M. Wackell 
Executive Assistant to the 
  Board of Selectmen 

Documents used during meeting: 
1. March 29, 2022 Meeting Agenda
2. Applications to the Zoning Board of Appeals



 

 

 
TOWN OF  NORTHBOROUGH 

Town Offices 
 63 Main Street 

Northborough, MA 01532-1994 
(508) 393-5040 Phone 

(508) 393-6996 Fax 
 

 
Application to serve on a  

Board, Committee or Commission (BCC) 
 

NAME: ____________________________ TEL: (C) _____________________ 

ADDRESS: ____________________________           (H) _____________________ 

  ____________________________ (EMAIL) _____________________ 

BBC DESIRED: _____________________________________________________ 
(If more than one, please complete one application for each Board or Committee desired) 
 
Are you a registered voter in Northborough?      YES _____      NO _____ 
 
How many years have you lived in Northborough?  _________________ 
 
Why do you want to serve on this particular BCC? 
________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Please state three attributes you can bring to this BCC: 
________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Have you attended any meetings of this BCC? __________________________________ 
 
Are there any changes you would like to make if you are appointed to this BCC? 
________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Do you regularly attend Town Meeting?  Yes ______ No ______ 
 
Have you ever served on a BCC in Northborough?  Yes ______ No ______ 
 
If yes, please list the Boards, Committees and/or Commissions you have served on: 
 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 

KWyrsch
Text Box
Kevin Wyrsch

KWyrsch
Text Box
3 Juniper Lane

KWyrsch
Text Box
Northborough, MA 01532

KWyrsch
Text Box
781-540-9246

KWyrsch
Text Box
kevin.wyrsch@gmail.com

KWyrsch
Text Box
Zoning Board of Appeals

KWyrsch
Text Box
X

KWyrsch
Text Box
14 years

KWyrsch
Text Box

KWyrsch
Text Box
No

KWyrsch
Text Box
X

KWyrsch
Text Box
X

KWyrsch
Text Box
Serving on the ZBA would give me the opportunity to become more involved with town planning and the future direction of Northborough.  I welcome the opportunity to learn how the ZBA operates, while giving back to the community.

KWyrsch
Text Box
1. Architect having experience from the Owner/Architect side of requesting zoning variances.2. Logical, clear thinking, organized.3. Positive and excited about the future of Northborough.



What is your occupation?  __________________________________________________ 

Please list any skills or specialized knowledge you can bring to this BCC: 
________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________ 

Please list your education background: 
________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________ 

Please list any professional affiliations: 
________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________ 

Please attach a resume or a letter of interest and list any additional information you feel 
may be helpful while reviewing your application: 
________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________ 

I understand , if appointed, I will be required to abide by the provisions of Massachusetts 
General Laws, Chapter 268A  - “Conflict of Interest”as provided by the Town Clerk. 

______________________________________ ______________________________ 
Signature Date 

PLEASE RETURN COMPLETED APPLICATION TO: 
Diane Wackell, Selectmen's Office 

63 Main Street, Northborough, MA 01532 
or by email to dwackell@town.northborough.ma.us 

============================================================= 
**Applications will be maintained in the Selectmen’s Office for 6 months 

from the date of receipt.  Applications may be updated and 
resubmitted after the 6 month time period** 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
FOR OFFICE USE ONLY 

Date of Interview: ___________________ Time: __________________ 

By Vote of BOS on 2.25.2019 

mailto:dwackell@town.northborough.ma.us
KWyrsch
Text Box
Bachelors Degree from Brandeis University.  Master's of Architecture Degree (M.ARCH) from the Boston Architectural College

KWyrsch
Text Box
American Institute of Architects (AIA)

KWyrsch
Text Box
Architect

KWyrsch
Text Box
Attached professional employee Resume

KWyrsch
Text Box
As an architect with nearly 20 years of experience, skills include programming, site planning, building design, knowledge of various codes and experience reviewing local zoning by-laws. 

KWyrsch
Text Box
3/5/2022

KWyrsch
Snapshot



ISGENUITY     Key Personnel 

KEVIN WYRSCH, AIA, PRINCIPAL joined ISGENUITY in 2003. Since then he has been an integral member in the 
growth of the firm. As a principal, Kevin takes part in all aspects of a project, from programming and design 
through construction and beyond. While at ISGENUITY, Kevin has managed and overseen some of the firm’s 
most prominent projects, including inpatient, outpatient, radiology, laboratories, infrastructure upgrades, 
retail and hospitality spaces. As an architect with over 17 years of experience, he has worked with some of 
Boston’s leading healthcare and academic centers including Boston Children’s Hospital, Boston Medical 
Center, Beth Israel Deaconess Medical Center, East Boston Neighborhood Health Center, and the MGH 
Institute of Health Professions on a wide array of projects. Kevin maintains a commitment to executing  
high-quality projects and superior client service. 

EDUCATION

Boston Architectural College, Master of Architecture
Brandeis University, Bachelor of Arts

SELECTED EXPERIENCE

Beth Israel Deaconess Medical Center
Deaconess 4 Behavioral Health Unit Renovation

Beverly Hospital
Addison Gilbert 4 Senior Adult Unit Anti-ligature Upgrades 
Bayridge & Leland Psychiatric Unit Upgrades 
Emergency Department Psych Observation Unit 

Mount Auburn Hospital 
Wyman 2 Anti-ligature Upgrades 

Cambridge Health Alliance 
Emergency Department Renovation 
Cambridge Hospital Psychiatric Unit Upgrades 
Everett Hospital Psychiatric Unit 

Watts Water Technologies 
MarCom Office Renovation 

Boston Children’s Hospital, Multiple projects at Main Campus, Lexington and Waltham including:
ICBAT residential unit
Bader 5 Psychiatric Inpatient
Fegan Elevator Tower
Outpatient Lobby
Waltham DNA Lab
Over 100,000 SF of outpatient clinical renovations at the Waltham Campus

Cape Cod Healthcare
Emergency Center Expansions
Endoscopy Suite

Boston Medical Center
Physical and Occupational Therapy Clinics

East Boston Neighborhood Health Center, Multiple projects in East Boston and Winthrop including:
Maverick Square Health Center 
Winthrop Clinic 
Urgent Care Renovation 
Campus Masterplanning 

Mass General Brigham
PCPO Medford Cardiology and Primary Care Clinic 
Mass General Brigham Urgent Care Natick
Mass General Brigham Urgent Care Westwood 
Mass General Brigham Urgent Care Lynn

PROFESSIONAL

Registered Architect, Massachusetts 
Boston Society of Architects/AIA, Member, 2007-present 
NCARB Certified

LECTURE

MedEd, “Designing for an Aging Population: New Emergency Departments on Cape Cod”, 2016
NEHES, “Designing for an Aging Population: New Emergency Departments on Cape Cod”, 2016

TEACHING/ALUMNI RELATIONS

MGH Institute of Health Professions, “Beyond ADA in Design” independent study course, Co-instructor 
New England School of Art & Design at Suffolk University, Thesis Advisor
Boston Architectural College, Portfolio Review Panel, Architectural Thesis Advisor

Kevin Wyrsch, AIA
Principal

8







RETURN TO AGENDA



BOARD OF SELECTMEN 
INTERVIEW SUBCOMMITTEE 

MEETING MINUTES – May 3, 2022 

5:55 p.m. -  Introduction to Remote Meeting 
Selectman Rutan stated that this Open Meeting of the Board of Selectmen Interview 
Subcommittee was being conducted remotely consistent with Governor Baker’s Executive 
Order of June 16, 2021, an Act Relative to Extending Certain COVID-19 Measures 
Adopted During the State of Emergency and that all members of the Board of Selectmen 
Interview Subcommittee are allowed and encouraged to participate remotely. 

Selectman Rutan noted that the Order allows public bodies to meet entirely remotely so 
long as reasonable public access is afforded so that the public can follow along with the 
deliberations of the meeting.  She added that ensuring public access does not ensure public 
participation unless such participation is required by law.  She noted that this meeting will 
be livestreamed, but will not allow for Public Comment. She indicated the various ways 
that the public may view this meeting as listed on the posted agenda.   

Selectman Rutan stated that any votes taken this evening will be by roll call vote. She 
confirmed that the following persons were remotely present and could be heard. 

Remotely present: 
Selectman Leslie Rutan, Interview Subcommittee 
Selectman Scott Rogers, Interview Subcommittee 
Selectman Jason Perreault (for acceptance of March 29, 2022 meeting minutes only) 
Rebecca Meekins, Assistant Town Administrator 

ACCEPTANCE OF MEETING MINUTES 
Selectman Rogers moved the Subcommittee vote to accept the minutes of the January 17, 
2022 meeting as presented; Selectman Rutan seconded the motion; the roll call vote was 
taken as follows: 

Selectman Rogers “aye” 
Selectman Rutan “aye” 

Selectman Rogers moved the Subcommittee vote to accept the minutes of the January 25, 
2022 meeting as presented; Selectman Rutan seconded the motion; the roll call vote was 
taken as follows: 

Selectman Rogers “aye” 
Selectman Rutan “aye” 

Selectman Rogers moved the Subcommittee vote to accept the minutes of the March 29, 
2022 meeting as amended; Selectman Perreault seconded the motion; the roll call vote was 
taken as follows: 

Selectman Rogers “aye” 
Selectman Perreault “aye” 



Interview Sub Committee Meeting Minutes 
May 3, 2022 

-2- 

Selectman Perreault exited the meeting following acceptance of the March 29, 2022 
meeting minutes. 

INTERVIEWS FOR THE DIVERSITY, EQUITY, INCLUSION AND 
BELONGING COMMITTEE 
During each of the interviews, Ms. Meekins briefly reviewed the work of the Diversity and 
Inclusion AdHoc Committee including its recommendation that a permanent Diversity, 
Equity, Inclusion and Belonging Committee (DEIB Committee) be created.  The DEIB 
Committee will serve in an advisory capacity to the Board of Selectmen and will consist 
of nine (9) voting members that will include herself, a representative from the School 
Department’s Coalition for Equity, a representative from the Council on Aging or their 
designee, and six (6) at-large members to be appointed by the Board of Selectmen.  Ms. 
Meekins also reviewed the DEIB Committee’s anticipated meeting schedule, charge and 
responsibilities. 

Following each interview, Selectman Rutan explained that the Interview Committee will 
discuss and vote on their recommendations for appointment for the Board of Selectmen’s 
consideration at their meeting on May 23, 2022. 

Matthew Benoit 
Mr. Benoit indicated that he has been a resident of Northborough since November 2020. 
He currently works as a Finance Manager in Sales and Marketing for Insulet Corporation 
in Acton.  He is interested in getting involved in the community as he raises his family here 
and feels that working with the DEIB Committee is a great place to make a lasting impact 
for the betterment of society. 

Mr. Benoit stated that he considers himself a young professional that can offer a fresh 
perspective, adding that he is passionate about being inclusive and offering that to his 
community.  Mr. Benoit indicated that his schedule is flexible in terms of any requirements 
to attend the DEIB Committee meetings.  

Kevin Reale 
As Mr. Reale was not present for his interview, Selectmen Rutan and Rogers decided to 
move forward with interviewing the remaining applicants.   

Melissa Diglio 
Ms. Diglio indicated that she has been a resident of Northborough for just about a year. 
For the last 14 years she has worked in Student Affairs as a member of the Bentley 
University Police Department.  She added that as a representative on the University’s 
Diversity Council and its Divisional Equity & Inclusion Committee, she has experience 
presenting to both small and large groups on various diversity, equity and inclusion topics 
on a bi-monthly basis.  She also co-creates leadership training workshops for student 
leaders with diversity in mind.  She has experience in creating surveys for the campus 
community in order to provide feedback to the Board of Directors.   

Ms. Diglio shared that she expects to live in Northborough for a longtime and is genuinely 
interested in doing her part to cultivate a community of belonging an acceptance for her 



Interview Sub Committee Meeting Minutes 
May 3, 2022 

-3- 

family and neighbors.  Since she has the ability to create her own work schedule, she would 
easily be able to attend the DEIB Committee meetings.   

Seira Shalton 
Ms. Shalton indicated that she has been a resident of Northborough for 12 years.  As Vice 
President of Learning and Development at Commonwealth Financial Network in Waltham 
she designs, develops and leads a host of programs executing cross-divisional diversity, 
equity and inclusion initiatives.  She serves on multiple diversity panels relating to race, 
gender, religion and culture. 

Ms. Shalton noted that she has wanted to give back to her community and feels that this is 
a great opportunity to do so.  She indicated that she would like to see the DEIB Committee 
create more inclusive programs in Northborough, adding that she would be able to share 
her experience in developing digital platforms, strategic programs and events.  She would 
be available to attend the DEIB Committee meetings. 

Yong Tan 
Mr. Tan indicated that he grew up and worked in China until 2014.  He has been a resident 
of Northborough since 2015.  He currently works at Microsoft as the Director of Hardware 
Engineering Program Management.  He comes from a diverse background and is active in 
the community working with the Northborough Scout Troops and having coached youth 
soccer.   

Mr. Tan noted that he can share good ideas as his overall philosophy is that all people 
should be treated equally and respectfully, and not be treated with just words, but with 
action. He is a good listener and this would be a good opportunity to do something for his 
community.  He indicated that although he is busy with work, he is fully committed to 
doing this work and can easily attend the DEIB Committee meetings. 

DELIBERATION 
It was noted that Town staff was not able to get in touch with Mr. Reale.  Ms. Wackell will 
reach out to him in attempt to reschedule his interview if he is still interested in serving on 
the DEIB Committee.   

Selectman Rutan noted that Diversity and Inclusion AdHoc Committee Vice Chair Mariam 
Ibrahimi has expressed interest in continuing her work with the DEIB Committee.  She was 
not able to participate in an interview this evening due to religious observances on this day. 
Selectmen Rutan and Rogers agreed to waive her interview considering her experience and 
that she is the only applicant who had previously served on the Diversity and Inclusion 
AdHoc Committee.   

Selectmen Rutan and Rogers agreed that all the applicants interviewed this evening were 
passionate about serving and would be a great asset to the DEIB Committee.  Following a 
brief discussion, Selectmen Rutan and Rogers discussed recommending Ms. Diglio and 
Ms. Shalton for the three-year terms based on their current level of expertise and experience 
in diversity, equity and inclusion initiatives.  Selectmen Rutan and Rogers discussed 
recommending Mr. Benoit and Mr. Tan for the two-year terms due to their enthusiasm and 
passion for diversity initiatives.  Selectmen Rutan and Rogers discussed recommending 



Interview Sub Committee Meeting Minutes 
May 3, 2022 

-4- 

Ms. Ibrahimi for the one-year term in recognition of her willingness to continue her work 
in diversity, equity and inclusion initiatives following her actions as Vice Chair of the 
Diversity and Inclusion AdHoc Committee; and with the understanding that she will have 
the opportunity to be reappointed if she so decides. 

Selectman Rogers moved the Subcommittee vote to recommend the following individuals 
for appointment to the Diversity, Equity, Inclusion and Belonging Committee at the May 
23, 2022 Selectmen’s Meeting: 

3-Year Terms
Melissa Diglio  
Seira Shalton 

2-Year Terms
Matthew Benoit 
Yong Tan 

1-Year Term
Mariam Ibrahimi 

Selectman Rutan seconded the motion; the roll call vote was taken as follows: 

Selectman Rogers “aye” 
Selectman Rutan “aye” 

Selectman Rutan thanked the applicants for their interest in serving on the DEIB 
Committee.  She also thanked Ms. Meekins for her past work as a member of the Diversity 
and Inclusion AdHoc Committee and for her continued work as a member of the DEIB 
Committee. 

ADJOURNMENT 
Selectman Rogers moved the Subcommittee vote to adjourn; Selectman Rutan seconded 
the motion; the roll call vote was taken as follows: 

Selectman Rogers “aye” 
Selectman Rutan  “aye” 

Meeting adjourned at 7:20 p.m. 
Respectfully submitted, 

Diane M. Wackell 
Executive Assistant to the 
  Board of Selectmen 

Documents used during meeting: 
1. May 3, 2022 Meeting Agenda
2. Applications to the DEIB Committee



































RETURN TO AGENDA


	Mn 04.11.22.pdf
	BOARD OF SELECTMEN
	MEETING MINUTES – April 11, 2022
	Diane M. Wackell
	Executive Assistant to the
	Board of Selectmen
	1. April 11, 2022 Meeting Agenda
	2. March 28, 2022 Meeting Minutes
	3. Memorandum – Appointment of Police Officer
	4. Information Packet – MBTA Communities
	5. Information Packet – State-Wide Opioid Settlements
	6. Memorandum – Reinstatement of Common Victualler License
	7. Information Packet – Reappointments
	8. Memorandum – Assignment of Town Meeting Warrant Articles
	9. Warrant Article Summary Sheet
	10. Memorandum – Meeting Schedule
	11. Cemetery Deeds

	Cest LaVie Hearing Notice.pdf
	TOWN OF NORTHBOROUGH

	Margaritas Cover Memo.pdf
	MEMO

	Jason Interest History.pdf
	Sheet1

	ZBA 03.29.22 Minutes.pdf
	BOARD OF SELECTMEN
	INTERVIEW SUB-COMMITTEE
	MEETING MINUTES – March 29, 2022
	Diane M. Wackell
	Executive Assistant to the
	Board of Selectmen
	1. March 29, 2022 Meeting Agenda
	2. Applications to the Zoning Board of Appeals

	DEIB Interview Minutes.pdf
	BOARD OF SELECTMEN
	INTERVIEW SUBCOMMITTEE
	MEETING MINUTES – May 3, 2022
	Diane M. Wackell
	Executive Assistant to the
	Board of Selectmen
	1. May 3, 2022 Meeting Agenda
	2. Applications to the DEIB Committee

	Es 02.14.22.pdf
	MEMBERS PRESENT: Jason Perreault, Chair
	Approval of Executive Session Meeting Minutes – November 8, 2021
	Selectman Rogers moved the Board vote to approve the Executive Session Meeting Minutes of November 8, 2021 as submitted; Selectman Rutan seconded the motion; the roll call vote was taken as follows:
	Documents used during Executive Session Meeting:
	1. November 8, 2021 ES Meeting Minutes

	DEIB Interview Minutes.pdf
	BOARD OF SELECTMEN
	INTERVIEW SUBCOMMITTEE
	MEETING MINUTES – May 3, 2022
	Diane M. Wackell
	Executive Assistant to the
	Board of Selectmen
	1. May 3, 2022 Meeting Agenda
	2. Applications to the DEIB Committee

	DEIB Interview Minutes.pdf
	BOARD OF SELECTMEN
	INTERVIEW SUBCOMMITTEE
	MEETING MINUTES – May 3, 2022
	Diane M. Wackell
	Executive Assistant to the
	Board of Selectmen
	1. May 3, 2022 Meeting Agenda
	2. Applications to the DEIB Committee




